M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 24, 2003

9:10 AM
TAPES
SFC-03 # 7, Side A
SFC-03 # 7, Side B
SFC-03 # 8, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-chair Geen convened the neeting at approximately 9:10 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Con Bunde

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Al so Attending: N CO BUS, Acting Adm nistrative Services Manager,
Division of Support Services, Departnent of Natural Resources;
JANET CLARKE, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Health and Social Services

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: JEFF JAHNKE, State
Forester, Division of Forestry, Departnent of Natural Resources

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON:

SB 75- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS: FAST TRACK
SB 76- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Comm ttee heard testinony fromthe Departnent of Natural
Resources and the Departnent of Health and Social Services. The
bills were held in Commttee.

#SB75
#SB76

SENATE BI LL NO. 75

"An Act maki ng suppl emental and ot her appropriations; anmendi ng
appropriations; and providing for an effective date.™

SFC- 03 (1)



SENATE BILL NO. 76

"An Act maki ng suppl emental and ot her appropriations; anmendi ng
appropriations; nmaking appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the second hearing for these bills in the Senate Fi nance
Conmittee.

Department of Natural Resources

SB 76

Section 7

Depart ment of Natural Resources

Fire Suppression

Fi xed costs and fire suppression costs incurred to date
$19, 033. 8 general fund

Nl CO BUS, Acting Adm nistrative Services Manager, Division of
Support Services, Departnent of Natural Resources, inforned the
Committee that the Departnent has provided a witten response
titled “Questions raised at 2/21/03 Comrittee hearing re: Fire
Suppl enental ” [copy on file] that provides answers to the questions
that arose during the previous neeting.

Co-chair Green asked whether, in addition to the specified stand-by
status rates identified in equipnent contracts, the State receives
special rates for personnel and other related fire suppression
associ ated costs. She stated that information pertaining to this
subj ect is included on page one of the Departnent’s aforenentioned
response, in the chart titled “Flight Tinme Breakdown PC-7s.”

M. Bus responded that the contracts, which address discounted
stand-by rates, are finalized well in advance of an upconming fire
season to assure that the State receives the best avail able rates.

Co-chair Geen asked whether contracted aircraft are used for
pur poses other than fire suppression; specifically whether they are
used to transport people to fire sites.

JEFF JAHNKE, State Forester, Division of Forestry, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, testified via teleconference from Anchorage and
informed the Conmmttee that aircraft are sonetinmes used for
adm nistrative flights, but the majority of the usage is for direct
fire suppression or firefighter support.

SFC- 03 (2)



Co-chair Green assuned, therefore, that the Departnment uses other
avai lable aircraft to transport individuals.

M. Jahnke agreed that this would be the norm for non-fire
transportati on needs.

Co-chair Geen asked for further information regarding the $58, 000
designated for Parts, Bench, Stock and Repl acenent as specified in
t he Mai ntenance section of the Departnent’s backup materi al.

M . Jahnke responded that the D vision maintains an inventory of
parts in order to quickly repair aircraft during the fire season

He noted that were this inventory not available, sone of the
aircraft would not be operational during crucial tines.

Co-chair Green asked why this itemis included in the suppl enenta
request rather than in the annual budget.

M. Bus responded that this itemis included in the section titled
“Fi xed Costs.”

Co-chair Geen noted that oftentines firefighters are called upon
to respond to fires outside of the area they reside. She asked how
this practice is coordinated to ensure econony of scale.

M. Bus responded that there are 72 established village response
crews that operate on a rotation basis beginning with Team One,
then Team Two, and so forth. He stated that a teamcould decline to
respond to a particular fire, and in that situation, the next team
woul d be cal | ed upon.

Co-chair Green asked whether this approach is the nost efficient
way to respond, particularly when a team mght be required to
travel fromone area to anot her

M. Jahnke replied that the process allows the D vision s dispatch
office to contact “the closest, locally available crews” until that
resource is exhausted. He continued that, at that point, the
Division would resort to the rotation list.

Co-chair Green communicated the need to conduct a review on the
Division of Forestry with a focus on the fire suppression operation
and “those costs that have been fixed costs or well established as
recurring costs;” from whence, she stated it could be determ ned
whi ch of those costs could be appropriately reflected in the annual
budget rather than in the suppl enental budget.

Co-chair Green asked whet her the Departnent excludes May and June

SFC- 03 (3)



2003 fire suppression expenses in the supplenental because the
Department has “been told not to and that it is subject to
Ratification,” or is the Departnent’s approach to the *“fire
suppressi on budget basically spend it and you will be refunded.”

M. Bus conmented that the potential cost of fires for the May and
June 2003 tinme periods is not included in the $19 nmllion
suppl enent al request because of the unknown extent of those fires.
He explained that were an expense for large fires included, but
smal | er “reqgul ar i nci dence” fires experienced, then the
suppl enental request would have been significantly inflated.
Therefore, he explained, “the practice” for the past several years
has been “to just deal” with this expense through the Ratification
process.

Co-chair Geen voiced her preference to address this “predictable”
expense as a fixed cost by “studying” the May and June expenses of
the previous five years.

Co-chair WI ken observed that the State annual |y expends $1 mllion
for year-round use of two PC-7 aircraft, which, he stated, equates
to $500,000 per craft on a ten-year |ease. He surm sed that the
State generates significant revenue from the 323 hours of flight
time charged to the federal governnent for use of these craft, as
depicted in the chart breakout provided on page one of the
af orenenti oned handout.

M . Bus concurred.

Co-chair WIken continued, therefore, that the 117 hours charged to
the federal governnent in excess of the State’s 206 hours of usage
could be considered as “a profit on those | eases.”

M. Bus responded that the Departnent regards this revenue as a
means of offsetting the cost to the State rather than as a profit.

Co-chair WIlken commented that the federal governnent, in essence,
is helping pay for the State’s | ease of these aircraft. He asked
whet her the Departnent is concerned with the expense associ ated
with the | easing of these two-seat high performance aircraft, which
he cal cul ated, cost approxi mately $2,000 per hour to operate. He
asked if a different aircraft could performthe required service at
a | esser cost.

M. Bus noted that the Departnent has determ ned that the federal
gover nnent pays approxi mately half of the | ease cost. He continued
t hat consi deration should be given to the fact that, at the end of
the | ease period, the State would own the aircraft as the result of

SFC- 03 (4)



t he | ease/ purchase agreenent.

Co-chair WI ken asked whet her $1900 an hour is an “excessive” price
to pay for a spotter aircraft.

M . Jahnke responded that the D vision conducted “a very |engthy
anal ysis” on the type of aircraft required to conduct the necessary
m ssi ons. He continued that the high performance aircraft currently
under the |ease/purchase agreenent are the nost efficient of the
aircraft options and are very maneuverable. He stated that this is
inportant, as these are high-risk m ssions.

Co-chair WI ken asked whether the cost per hour for these aircraft
is an acceptabl e cost.

M. Jahnke replied, “it is indeed” given the mssion that the
aircraft fly.

Co-chair WI ken asked whether the calculation that the | ease costs
$500, 000 per year per plane is correct.

M. Jahnke clarified that the cost per plane is $250,000 and t hat
$500, 000 is the cost for both planes.

Co-chair W1 ken acknow edged the correction, and recal cul ated the
per hour cost to be approxi mtely $900.

Co-chair WI ken supported Co-chair Green’s position that a review
should be conducted on the fire suppression operation, and
suggested that the review be conducted in the interim between
Legi sl ative sessions. He stressed that the cost of fire suppression
should be westled with “proactively rather than retroactively.”

AT EASE 9:28 AM/ 9:28 AM

Co-chair Geen noted that sone of the itens identified in the FY 03
Fire Suppression Fixed Cost table in the backup material are paid
at the beginning of the fiscal year. She asked whet her the nunbers
reflect the full year or a six-nonth expense.

M. Bus stated that the pre-paid Fixed Cost expense reflects the
full year.

Co-chair Geen asked whether the $600,000 equipnment charges
identified in the Departnent’s Suppl enmental backup information are
reoccurring expenses that could be included in the annual budget
request. She al so asked the nature of the equipnent in the request.

SFC- 03 (5)



M. Bus responded that a list of the supplies purchased under this
request woul d be provided to the Conmittee.

Co-chair Geen voiced that were this anbunt spent annually for new
equi pnent, she woul d consi der the anobunt excessive.

M. Bus responded that the forthcomng |ist would provide
expenditure details.

AT EASE 9:31 AM/ 9:31 AM

Co-chair Green asked how |l ong fire suppression expenses have been
processed as a portion of the Suppl enental Budget Request.

M. Bus responded that this has been the procedure for at |east ten
years.

Co-chair Green asked whether the Departnent “adequately considered”
t he renoval of $85,000 of the Departnent’s FY 03 unal |l ocat ed budget
reduction “fromthe fire suppression line item”

M. Bus conmented that when “percentage reductions” are di scussed,
“the unfortunate situation at the Departnent of Natural Resources
is that the Division of Forestry’s fire suppression portion is a
si zabl e chunk of our general funds,” therefore, he continued, the
Departnment attenpts to “find that noney in our regular prograns.”
However, he concluded, this is “not fair” as the fire suppression’s
unal | ocated percentage is then subtracted from the Departnent’s
ot her prograns.

Co-chair Geen stated that this “is a really bad idea.”
M. Bus agreed.

Co-chair Green recommended that the Department reconsider this
approach for future budgeting. She voiced that “since its funded
after the expense is incurred,” she opined, the Departnment could
have submtted the entire unallocated cut in this section because
the Departnent is aware “that they are going to get it.”

M. Bus stated that the Departnent carefully considered other
options, and he voiced that, “unallocated reductions are a bad idea
inthe first place. He voiced support for assigning reductions to
specific prograns, as, he conti nued, deci sions regarding
unal |l ocated reductions are difficult on a Departnent wthout
specific direction.

Co-chair Geen restated her desire for the Departnent to assign

SFC- 03 (6)



fixed costs to its annual budget.

Senator Taylor comrented that the PC-7 aircraft “looks like a
hotrod.” He asked why such a fast aircraft is required.

M. Bus expressed that the PC-7 serve as air traffic control and
that these planes are required to fly the fire zone and direct
other aircraft and equipnent to |ocations as needed. He asserted
that wi |l derness area settings require a high performance pl ane.

M . Jahnke confirnmed that the high performance PC-7 is the |ead
pl ane. He continued that their ability to maneuver close to the
ground in snoky conditions provides the needed information
regarding a fire. He stated that the cost of operating these
aircraft is simlar to costs incurred by other fire fighting
aircraft used in the Lower 48.

Senat or Tayl or asked the cost of fuel and mai ntenance for the PC7
in addition to the | ease/ purchase agreenent cost.

M. Jahnke stated that he would supply this information to the
Conmittee.

Senat or Tayl or stressed the need to know the inclusive actual cost
of operating the PC-7 on a per hour basis.

M. Jahnke assured the Committee that this information would be
forthcom ng.

Department of Health and Social Services

SB 75

Section 3(1)

Department of Health and Social Services

General Relief Assistance

Casel oad grom h. Current funds projected to be fully spent by
m d- Apri |

$271, 000 general funds

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Health and Social Services informed the Commttee
that this program “was devel oped as a safety net prograni in the
territorial days to pay for indigent burials and |ow incone
i ndi vi dual s’ energency needs.

Ms. Clarke continued that i ndi gent burials account for

approximately 81 percent of the programis funding with the
remai ning 19 percent supporting the emergency needs program She

SFC- 03 (7)



stated that as a result of these unexpected FY 03 expenditures, the
Depart ment devel oped the |ine chart that is included in the backup
information, to determ ne whether a trend was occurring. She stated
chart depicts the total cost, the burial costs, and the energency
assi stance costs. She explained that the energency assistance costs
have | owered and renmi ned constant over the past several years;
however, she noted, the indigent burial expenses have increased
substantially. She noted that an average of 42 indigent burials
have occurred per nonth in FY 03 conpared to an average of 32 per
nonth in FY 02. She stated that this explains the increase in
pr ogr am expenses.

Co-chair Green noted that this programis FY 03 budgeted funding
| evel was at the | evel requested by Governor Tony Know es.

Ms. d arke concurred.

Co-chair Green sunmmarized that this increase is a result of an
i ncrease in the nunber of indigent burials.

SB 75

Section 3(2)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Foster Care Special Needs

Formula program shortfunding $445.3 and caseload growth
$170.0. Current funds projected to be fully expended in May
$615, 300 general funds

Ms. Clarke stated that this program provides funding for specia
one-tinme itens such as “extraordinary” clothing for “fragile”
children or food for children wth special dietary needs in the
foster care program She noted that this program could al so provide
for special dental care that is not covered through Medicaid. She
characteri zed these expenses are non-reoccurring itens.

Co-chair Green noted that the Foster Care program consists of three
conponents: base; Augnented Care; and Special Needs. She asked for
the definition of these three conponents.

Ms. Clarke explained that federal regulations and Title A4E
primarily establish the definitions for these conponents. She
stated that the definitions would be forthcom ng.

Co-chair Green asked whether individuals could transfer from one
programto anot her.

Ms. Clarke replied that the base rate, which is the nonthly rate
paid to Foster Care providers, applies to all Foster Parent

SFC- 03 (8)



participants. She stated that the other two conponents are *add-
ons.”

Co-chair Geen asked for the definition of the augnented program

Ms. Clarke explained that this program provides for an increase in
nont hly paynents to Foster Parents to provide for the reoccurring
needs of a special needs child. She continued that this differs
from special needs paynents, which are for a one-tinme non-
reoccurring item

Co-chair Green sumari zed, therefore, that augnmented paynents are
for long-term situations. She asked how the decision to grant
augnent ed paynents is determ ned.

Ms. Clarke responded that an extensive review is conduct ed.

Co-chair G een observed that the level of this request is higher
than the anobunt requested in FY 01 and FY 02.

Ms. O arke agreed.

SB 75

Section 3(3)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Subsi di zed Adoptions & CGuard

Formul a program shortfunding $2,000.0 and caseload growth
$833.3. Current funds projected to be fully expended in April.
$2,833. 3 general funds

Ms. Clarke informed the Commttee that this request is in
antici pation of program fundi ng being depleted in April. She stated
that this program provides for the cost of special needs for
children and the famlies who adopt themuntil the child reaches
the age of eighteen. She shared that the needs of approximtely
1,961 children would be provided for through this program She
stated that this anmount is in excess of the FY 03 Governor’s
proposed budget allocation, and that the programrequest was short
funded by the Legislature in FY 03. She additionally noted that the
nunber of special needs children has increased.

Co-chair Green asked whet her the expenses of this program have been
af fected by changes in other prograns.

Ms. Clarke referred the Commttee to the line chart, titled
attachment B in the backup material, which depicts the growth of
t he subsidized adoption and guardi anship program as well as the
foster care base rate. She pointed out that while the subsidized

SFC- 03 (9)



adoption and guardi anshi p program has been grow ng, the base rate
has remai ned constant. She stated that being able to nove speci al
needs children into permanent honmes has offset the need to increase
funding for the foster care program

Co-chair Green questioned why, if this were the situation, there is
a request for increased funds for the foster care program

Ms. Clarke clarified that the request for the foster care program
i nvol ves funds to support the special needs portion of the program
whi ch provides for “the one-tinme, extraordinarily high” itens not
provided for in the nonthly base rate.

Ms. Clarke expressed that the chart reflects the “good news” that
the growth of the foster care program has slowed because the
Department has been able to place nore children into permanent
homes. She stated that this placenent has been accel erated by
recently adopted | egislation that established programtinelines.

Co-chair G een asked whether the |egislation being referred to was
“the balloon project.”

Ms. Cl arke responded that in addition to the ball oon project other
| egislation as well as “congressional nmandates for tinmeliness to
nove children who had been in the foster care programfor nore than
22 nmonths into permanent hones.” She stated that the Departnent has
acconplished these directives by noving nore children into
per mmnent honmes. She voiced that while the nunber of children
comng into the foster care programis still large, it is “not
overwhel m ng” the program as the Departnent has been able to nove a
correspondi ng nunber of children into pernmanent hones.

Senat or Tayl or comrented that a “policy shift” occurred during the
first years of Governor Tony Know es’ admnistration “where we, as
a State, went from being conparable to all other states on a per
capita basis for the nunber of children we had placed in foster
care, to wthin about a year and a half after that policy change
occurred, we were running the highest in the nation, at alnost
doubl e the nearest state to us on a per capita basis.” He stated
that this policy shift created the need for a large increase in the
budget of this Departnent, as well as increasing the need for nore
foster hones. He recalled there “being perhaps three child deaths”
resulting fromthe State renoving a child from one hone due to a
perceived threat to the child s safety and placing that child in a
foster hone that had not been sufficiently investigated and at
which the child died. He asked whet her the Departnent continues to
abi de by the sane guidelines that created the rapid growmh in the
program

SFC- 03 (10)



Ms. Cl arke responded that she could not verify that Al aska has the
hi ghest per capita nunber of children in the foster care program
however, she voiced that the Departnment woul d investigate this. She
stressed that Governor Murkowski’'s admnistration is conmtted to
solving issues that were identified in a recent federal review of
the Departnment. She stated that these issues include “serious”
concerns regarding the child protection system She continued that
Comm ssioner Joe G lbertson “is commtted to hiring the best
manager for the child protection division.” She stated that, “there
is an attitudinal shift” in addressing this problem within the
Departnment and that the Department’s findings would be shared with
the Legislature.

Senator Taylor continued to voice his concern, and urged the
Conmittee to not only discuss the situation with the Conmm ssioner,
but additionally to request a statistical analysis be conducted to
conpare the cost of specialized childcare, general foster care, and
general relief care prior to and after the aforenentioned policy
shift. He stressed that additional research should be conducted to
determ ne the “cost of keeping children in their honme rather than
renoving them and placing them in foster care” He declared that
involving parents in the latter project would be beneficial in
devel opi ng the “baseline paranmeters,” and he pointed out that the
answer to this question should be reviewed and di scussed by this
Committee as well as the Senate Health & Social Services Committee
as it “could have major ramfications on how we focus” the budget
for the Departnent.

Co-chair WIken characterized the 47 percent growh of subsidized
adopti on and guardi anshi p depicted on the aforenentioned graph “B
to reflect “an alarmng rate” of increase. He asked how this graph
woul d have | ooked in the md 1990's. He reiterated Senator Taylor’s
concern regarding the Departnment’s policy for placing children in
foster care.

Ms. O arke stated that the Departnent woul d provide the requested
statistical information about the Foster Care program

SB 75

Section 3(4)

Department of Health and Social Services

O d Age Asst/ALB Hold Harm ess

Casel oad grom h. Current funds projected to be fully spent by
the end of May.

$110. 0 general funds

Ms. Clarke commented that this request for O d Age Assistance and

SFC- 03 (11)



the Al aska Longevity Bonus (ALB) Hold Harm ess program is the
result of "“an error” in Departnment calculations regarding the
nunber of participants in the program She explained that the
Depart nent should have requested a decrenent of $122,100 rather
than its “aggressive” requested decrenment of $232,100. She stated
that while this program “mrrors the Longevity Bonus program” it
has experienced nore delays in its participant reduction |evels.

Co-chair Geen clarified that this request concerns the Hold
Har m ess program

Ms. d arke concurred.

Co-chair Green understood the request to be based on the nunber of
people in the system requiring paynent resulting from the Hold
Harm ess provision. She inquired as to whether receiving a
per manent fund dividend coul d disqualify an individual.

Ms. O arke responded that the | ongevity programis based on Al aska
statute that “requires that any benefits from federal SSI
[ Suppl emental Security Incone] or State Adult Public Assistance
that are reduced or term nated because of the receipt of the ALB
paynment shall be replaced with State general funds.” Therefore, she
continued, individuals are held harm ess fromlosing these funds.

Co-chair G een asked whether individuals could receive two hold
harm ess provisions: one resulting from the Od Age Assistance
program and one fromthe Permanent Fund program

Ms. Clarke responded in the affirmative.

Co-chair Green asked the average age of the participants in the Ad
Age Assi stance Program

SFC 03 # 7, Side B 10: 02 AM

Ms. O arke responded that she did not have that information. She
stated the Hold Harm ess program partici pants nust be over 65 years
of age, which is the sane age required to participate in the Al aska
Longevi ty Bonus Program

Co-chair Green asked how the current nunber of program participants
conpares to the prior year. She noted that every year the nunber of
people qualifying for the program should be deceasing as the
popul ati on ages.

SFC- 03 (12)



Ms. arke inforned the Commttee that the program expenditures for
FY 03 are |l ess than the anmount spent in FY 02. She reiterated that
this request is the result of the Departnment “m ssing the mark” in
its projections.

SB 75

Section 3(5)

Department of Health and Social Services

Kenai Peninsula Youth Facility

Funds to hire superintendent and unit | eader and provide ot her
operating funds needed to open the facility that wll be
conpleted April 15, 20083.

$155. 2 general funds

Ms. Clarke informed the Commttee that, when conpleted in md-
April 2003, this facility would be the newest youth facility in the
State. She rem nded the Conmttee that the Departnent received
aut hori zation fromthe Legislature to build several youth detention
facilities wth the intent of housing youth wthin their
conmuni ties or |ocal regions. She explained that this request would
provide funding for utilities and facility managenent staff in
preparation of housing youth as of July 2003.

Co-chair Green asked the reason for including this funding in the
suppl enental budget request since of the opening of the facility
was anti ci pat ed.

Ms. Clarke agreed that this is not an unexpected event. She stated
that the decision was nmade the previous year not to request the
funds in the regul ar budget; however, she stressed that funding the
facility's utility costs is necessary. She reported that partial
fundi ng has been requested in the past for facilities that opened
in the spring; however, she stated, the reason for presenting the
request in the suppl enental budget is not known.

Co-chair G een asked the nunber of youth currently housed at the
McLaughlin Youth Center, and whether the opening of the new
facility would alleviate any overcrowdi ng that MLaughlin m ght be
experienci ng.

Ms. Cl arke responded that the opening of the facility woul d assi st
in relieving overcrowdi ng at McLaughlin. She noted that additiona
informati on woul d be presented in other supplenental requests.

Co-chair G een asked whether the start-up costs associated with the

new facility are conparable to the start-up costs of other youth
facilities.

SFC- 03 (13)



Ms. O arke believed the costs to be conparable, but stated that a
cost conparison with the facilities in Ketchi kan and Mat-Su woul d
be provided to the Commttee.

Senator Tayl or opined that the Legislature could request that the
opening of the facility be delayed until July.

SB 76
Section 8(a)(1)
Department of Health and Social Services
Adul t Public Assistance
Program shortfundi ng was estinmated to be $1,750.0 GF in My.
Casel oad growt h has added an additional $333.0 G- and $285.0
Fed. Average projected nonthly caseload is 4.3% higher than
the 1% casel oad growt h | evel funded | ast session.
$2,368.0 total funds

$2,083. 0 general funds

$ 285.0 federal funds

Ms. Clarke stated that this request would provide funds for a
projected average of 15,390 individuals in the Adult Public
Assi stance program She stated that this nunber is approximtely
4.3% higher than projected. She nentioned that eligibility
requi renents include being elderly or being at |east 18 years of
age and blind, or a person diagnosed by a physician as permanently
di sabl ed. She noted that this program supplenents the federa
Suppl enmental Security Inconme (SSI) program by providing cash
assistance to individuals to help them remain i ndependent and in
their own honmes for |onger periods of tine.

Co-chair Green asked whether the requirenents for the program are
stringent.

Ms. Clarke responded in the affirmative and nentioned that the
people in the program nust qualify for the federal definition of
disabled in addition to neeting the incone eligibility
requi rements. She stated the average supplenment is $162 per nonth,
whi ch, when conbined with the SSI paynent, amounts to approxi mately
$900 per nonth.

Co-chair Green asked the nunber of individuals being served by this
program

Ms. Clarke stated that of the projected average of 15,390
individuals being served in this program per nonth, 10,614 are
di sabled and 4,776 are elderly. She nentioned that this program has
been growi ng approximately 4.5 to 5.5 percent per year.

SFC- 03 (14)



SB 76

Section 8(a)(2)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Fam |y Preservation

Unanticipated federal grant award to fund Child Abuse
Treatment Plans for Alaska Native Children and Parents
proj ect.

$450. 0 federal funds

Ms. Clark stated that this request would authorize the receipt of
$450,000 in federal Indian Child Wlfare Act funds. She stated
that, although the Departnment applied for the grant in May 2002,
the awarding of this federal grant in COctober 2002 dictated its
bei ng submtted in the suppl enmental budget request rather than as a
revi sed program request through the Legislative Budget and Audit
Comm ttee. She stated that the Child in Need of A d program would
use these funds to work on such issues as Native child welfare
concerns, Native foster honmes, and inplenmentation of policy
procedures for Native children in foster care.

SB 76

Section 8(a)(3)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

McLaughlin Youth Facility

Popul ation increase of 18.9% has resulted in increased
overtime of $16.7 and laundry, food, and clothing costs of
$9.1. FY2002 average population was 179.6 while FY2003 has
averaged 198. 3

$25. 8 general funds

Ms. Clarke referred the Commttee to the chart in the backup
material that denotes the capacity levels of the Facility. She
shared wth the Commttee that cost containnment efforts have
concentrated on keeping staffing levels to a mnimum and cur bi ng
expenses by delaying the purchasing of itens; however, she
continued, the overtinme demanded of staff to oversee the grow ng
yout h popul ation at the facility, conbined with the increase in
costs for such things as laundry, pronpted the need for this
request.

Ms. O ark added that the opening of the new youth facility in Kena
is welcome as the youth population at MLaughlin is reaching
capacity.

Co-chair Geen voiced that the staff at MLaughlin should have
better addressed this situation.

Senat or Tayl or asked how an increase of 19 youth caused this |evel

SFC- 03 (15)



of expense.

Ms. O ark responded that the nunbers projected are not a daily
count but rather depict the average of the nunber of youth in the
facility. She continued that, at tinmes, there could be a large
nunber of youth or a |esser nunber of youth. She stated that
another factor is that situations arise that create an over-
capacity situation in one unit, particularly the detention unit,
t hereby concentrating the nunbers in one area rather than spreading
t hem t hr oughout the overall bed count.

SB 76

Section 8(a)(4)

Department of Health and Social Services

Fai rbanks Youth Facility

Extraordi nary nedical costs including MR, extensive brain
testing, weekly allergy shots, and surgery.

$20. 0 general funds

Ms. C arke conveyed that the extent of these nedical costs could
not be covered through the regul ar budget. She stated that, simlar
to adult correction facilities, juveniles in State institutions are
not eligible for Medicaid. She furthered that if a juvenile has
other insurance in effect, that insurance would be billed as
primary; however, she explained, in these situations, no other
coverage was avail abl e and there was no ot her paynent “source.”

Co-chair Green voiced that juveniles in correction faculties are
classified as adults according to federal |[aw. She voiced being
unaware that Medicaid coverage is not available for correctional
facility inmates.

Ms. Clarke identified this exenption “as a big barrier that the
feds put up; they will not pay for those nedical costs to Medicaid
even if the individuals are eligible if they're in a correctional
facility.”

SB 76

Section 8(a)(5)

Department of Health and Social Services

Nonme Youth Facility

Staff for population increase. Average daily popul ati on has
i ncreased 36% over FY2002. Facility capacity is 6. Average
popul ation is FY2002 was 6.9 while FY2003 average popul ation
has been 9. 3.

$100. 8 general funds

Ms. Clarke responded that the Nome facility is one of the State’s

SFC- 03 (16)



smal l est youth facilities. She stated that it was reopened in the
md 1990°'s with the intention of being staffed as a community
detention facility. She continued that the increase in the nunber
of youth entering the None facility, primarily from the Kotzebue
area, has required the staffing of the facility “to be increased by
one on every shift to deal with these kids who conme in to our
facility.” She stated that sonme of these children have serious
of fenses and require twenty-four hour supervision. She explained
that the “original plan” for this facility included one staff
person for each evening and graveyard shift; however, she stated,
“that was not a safe assunption for the nunber of children com ng
into the Nonme facility,” and additional staff was required “to keep
that facility safe.”

Co-chair G een asked whether None is a | ockdown facility.

Ms. Cl arke responded that it could be a |ocked facility.
Co-chair Geen noted that the facility is not very | arge.

Ms. Clarke stated that it is not large “and is very cranped.”

Co-chair Geen commented that the request appears to be “an
excessive anmount” for 2.4 extra occupants.

SB 76

Section 8(a)(6)

Department of Health and Social Services
Johnson Youth Facility

Medi cal costs for physical therapy for 1 youth
$11.5 general funds

Ms. Garke stated that this facility, much |ike the Fairbanks Youth
Facility, experienced additional nmedical expenses for a youth
needi ng braces for which the Shriners dub could not fully provide
coverage. She stated that physical therapy needs al so exceeded the
budget ed anount.

Co-chair Geen asked whether this addressed a pre-existing
condi tion.

Ms. Clarke stated that this information woul d be provided.

SB 76

Section 8(a)(7)

Department of Health and Social Services

Bet hel Youth Facility

Popul ation increased 34.7% over FY2002 and extraordinary

SFC- 03 (17)



nmedi cal costs estimated at $35.0
$66. 1 general fund

Co-chair Green asked whether a nedical review group coul d address
changes to State policy to clarify the level of coverage the State
woul d be responsible for individuals in State custody.

Ms. Clarke responded that nultiple issues, including the growth in
t he nunber of youth in State facilities, have created the increase
in medi cal expenses being experienced. She stated that while the

Departnent does budget for nedical expenses, the “increased
pressure” placed on this budget by a growi ng popul ati on, conbi ned
with increased nedical expenses, have “outstripped” t he

Departnment’s ability to cover the expenses.

Co-chair Geen asked whether the Departnent attenpts to recoup the
medi cal expenses.

Ms. O arke assured the Commttee that attenpts are nade; however,
she comruni cated, the findings reveal that nmany of these children
to not have nedi cal coverage.

Co-chair G een asked whether any of the children at the Bethe
facility, for instance, qualify for Indian Health Services.

Ms. Clarke stated that this woul d be investi gated.

Co-chair Green stated that children qualifying for Indian Health
Servi ces should be 100 percent covered for nedical expenses.

Co-chair Geen voiced that children who qualify for Indian Health
Services should be treated at an Al aska Native Hospital rather than
at a non-Native hospital where expenses would be totally charged to
the State.

Ms. d arke concurred.

Co-chair Geen requested a review be conducted regardi ng where
services are being provided.

SB 76

Section 8(a)(8)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Vital Statistics

Qperating costs driven by increased nunber of |icenses and
certificates, including non-permanent positions to deal with
backl ogs. Also covers rent as were able to nove into new
facility earlier than anti ci pated.

SFC- 03 (18)



$195. 0 Recei pt Supported Services

Ms. Clarke informed the Conmmttee that the Division of Vital
Statistics charges fees for the issuance of certificates for such
things as births and deaths. She shared that the Division
experienced a significant increase in the nunber of certificates
bei ng requested, which resulted in an “unacceptabl e backl og” of
requests. She continued that a portion of this supplenmental request
woul d pay for the expense of hiring non-permanent staff to address
t he backl og and bring the requests current. She stated that another
portion of the request provides for non-budgeted | ease paynents and
associated costs of noving the Juneau facility to a |arger,
conpetitively bid location in the Lenon Creek area. She expl ai ned
that the expense of noving the vital statistic records to the new
facility exceeded the Division' s estinmates.

Co-chair Geen asked whether “glanmour certificates,” which
designate a portion of the fee to such things as a non-profit
organi zation, are included in these requests.

Ms. O ark responded that the bul k of the backl ogged requests are
regular certificates required for |egal purposes.

Senat or Taylor expressed disbelief that the mjority of the
increase is for death certificates.

Ms. O arke responded that the percentage of certificates being
requested for death certificates is not defined; however, she
continued, in the last several years, the overall nunber of
requests has increased significantly.

Senator Taylor inquired whether the increase in requests for
certificates required the nove to the new facility.

Ms. O arke responded that rather than the nove to the new facility
resulting from an increase in the nunber of certificates being
requested, the nove was approved by the Legislature to provide nore
space for vital statistics records. She shared that these records
were overcrowded and that inadequate space was available for
i ndi viduals doing research on famly history or other private
matters. In addition, she noted, the D vision recently absorbed the
responsibility of housing both nedical narijuana and abortion
records, as well as records that were once the responsibility of
the Court System

Co-chair Green asked whether such things as noving and increased

| ease paynent expenses “are typically” included in a suppl enental
budget request.

SFC- 03 (19)



Ms. O arke responded that it is not typical, unless it is sonething
that “is extraordi nary” and was not budget ed.

Co-chair Green asked for verification that the noving expenses
anounted to $75, 000.

Ms. O arke specified that the request includes $120,000 to cover
the expense of hiring non-permanent enployees to address the
backl og and $75,000 i n movi ng and increased | ease paynent expenses.

Senator Taylor interjected that this Division generates noney from
the fees charged for certificates.

Co-chair Geen clarified that the funding for this request is
generated fromthe fees charged for the certificates.

Co-chair WIlken asked, were this receipt expenditure authority
request approved, whether the current five-dollar fee being charged
for certificates would be sufficient to address the current backl og
of requests.

Ms. Clarke stated that a fee increase is not antici pated.

SB 76
Section 8(b)
Departnent of Health and Social Services
Medi cai d Servi ces
Clainms growth and match rate adjustnent
$10,991. 3 total funds
$28, 055. 8 general funds
($16, 064.5) federal funds
($ 1,000.0) statutory designated program

Ms. Clarke stated that this request results froma conbination of
an FY 03 federal match adjustnent and a decline in Native Medicaid
partici pants.

Ms. Carke shared that, historically, the authorized federal
Medicaid match was 50 percent; however, she noted that when
recently-elected Governor Frank Mrkowski was a Congressional
Senator, he was instrunental in raising Alaska' s authorized match
rate to 59.8 percent for a four-year period. She continued that
Al aska’s match level has “floated” according to the national
formula level since the tine the elevated rate expired. She
expl ained that Al aska’s per capita incone |evel, which is a factor
in determning the federal Medicaid contribution to a state,
increased as a result of a federal calculation adjustnent that

SFC- 03 (20)



began factoring in 401K or federal contributions to federal
enpl oyees in the State. She noted that the high percent of federa
enpl oyees in the Alaska resulted in increasing the State' s per
capita inconme | evel and consequently, |lowering the federal Medicaid
percent contributed to the State.

Ms. Carke stressed that for a variety of reasons, the State’s
Medi cai d rei nbursenent rates have fluctuated, making it difficult
to budget. She stated that the Departnent nust adjust to working
within the floating rate structure.

Ms. Clarke continued that another factor determ ning this request
is that the nunber of Tribal Native participants, whose Medicaid
expenses are reinbursed at 100 percent rather than at the floating
rate, has, “unexpectantly,” declined this past year.

Co-chair Geen asked for further information regarding Native
Medi cai d rei nbur senent s.

Ms. O arke responded that the Medicaid program has a variety of
Medi caid match rates, and that were a Native Alaskan to receive
treatnment in a Tribal facility, the State would receive 100 percent
federal Medicaid rei nbursenent. She stated that the nunber of 100
percent reinbursenents “dropped” this past year

Co-chair Green asked whether this resulted from individuals
choosing to go to non-Native hospitals.

Ms. Clarke responded that this mght be possible; however, she
noted that a change in the Al aska Native Medical Center claim
process m ght have del ayed receipt of sone of the billings. She
stated that, due to the inportance of this issue, an investigation
is being conducted by the Departnment to determ ne why there has
been a decline in Native billings.

Co-chair Geen asked for further information regarding the Al aska
Native Medical Center billing process.

Ms. Cark responded that the Center bills the Departnent for
services rendered, on an individual basis. She continued that the
Department pays the bill at 100 percent using noney from the
federal 100 percent Tribal Medicaid program

Ms. Carke conmmunicated that $3.9 mllion of the $28 million
general fund request is for unanticipated growmh in the Medicaid
programin FY 03 as a result of a growmh in children s expenses.

Co-chair Geen interjected that the l[imts for children nedica

SFC- 03 (21)



expenses are established by the State.

Ms. Carke clarified that rather than individual children’s
expenses increasing, the nunber of children served is increasing.

Co-chair Geen concluded that the increase is, therefore, the
result of casel oad growth

Ms. Clarke inforned the Commttee that there has also been an
i ncrease in the nunber of pregnant wonen in the Medicaid program

Co-chair Green asked whether these expenses include the Denali
Ki dCar e program

Ms. Ol arke responded yes.

Co-chair Geen asked whether there has been a change in the
Medicaid rate for the Denali KidCare program

Ms. O arke responded that the match rate for the Denali KidCare
program has been reduced.

Co-chair Green asked whether the Medicaid rate for cervical and
breast cancer has been reduced.

Ms. Clarke responded that the rate for this program“floats” with
the federal Medicaid fornmula; therefore, she stated, this match
rate has al so been | ower ed.

Co-chair Green asserted that this has resulted in an increased
demand on State general funds.

Ms. Clarke estimated that the current cervical and breast cancer
match rate is 70.79 percent.

Ms. Clarke stated that elderly caseloads are projected to rise
slightly; however, she noted, disabled caseloads and costs are
projected to rise approximately, 2 percent and 4 percent,
respectfully nore than anticipated in the FY 03 budget.

Co-chair G een asked whether any of the program s qualifiers have
changed or broadened.

Ms. O arke responded no. She noted that a regulation package to
clarify eligibility was introduced in the fall of 2002 regarding
the waiver program however, she noted that the previous
Adm ni stration renoved the package from consi deration. She stated
that Governor Miurkowski’s Administration recently adopted a

SFC- 03 (22)



separate general cost contai nment package.

Co-chair Green voiced that the savings resulting fromthis recently
enacted | egi slation would be forthcom ng.

Ms. Clarke clarified that this legislation is effective as of now,
and that sone cost savings are antici pated.

Co-chair Geen distributed a packet of material and from the
packet; she read | anguage | ocated on |line 32, page 3 of CCS HB 404,
Sec.1 [copy on file] as follows.

“This statenent is a statenment of the purpose of the
appropriation for Medical Assistance and is neither nerely
descriptive | anguage nor a statenent of legislative intent. It
the intent of the legislature that the anount appropriated in

this appropriation is the full anmount that wll be
appropriated for Medical Assistance for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2003. If the amount appropriated in this

appropriation is not sufficient to cover the costs of Mdica
Assistance for all eligible persons, the departnment shal
el im nate coverage for optional nedical services that have a
federal match and optionally eligible groups of individuals in
accordance with AS 47.07.035. It is the intent of the
Legi sl ature that requests for supplenental appropriations for
Medi cal Assistance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003
will not be approved. This intent covers the budgeted
reductions to Medicaid, but does not apply to any |oss of
funds that may occur if the departnment’s “Fair Share” funding
mechani smis not approved by the federal governnent.”

Co-chair Green continued that the aforenenti oned package includes a
Medi cai d Servi ces- Conponent neno, dated Decenber 14, 2001 [copy on
file] from the Departnment of Health and Social Services that
contains information about the Federal Medi cal  Assi stance
Percentage (FMAP) that reads as foll ows.

“Alaska’s federal FY 02 FMAP rate was decreased to 57.38
percent for Title XIX and 70.17 percent for Title XXI. This is
a significant drop fromFY 01 that carries with it a potenti al
| oss of federal funds for Al aska of nore than $10 mllion. On
Novenber 6, 2001, U. S. Senator Mac Baucus introduced the
“Econom ¢ Recovery and Assi stance for Anmerican Wrkers Act of
2001” that includes FMAP relief. The Act holds harm ess states
with 02 FMAP rates that were reduced, provides an across-the-
board 1 percent increase and an additional 1 percent increase
to states with a higher than average unenpl oynent rate over
t he previous 3 nonths.

SFC- 03 (23)



In anticipation of the enactnent of the Econom c Recovery and
Assi stance for American Wrkers Act of 2001, the departnent is
not asking for additional general funds to replace potentially
| ost federal dollars at this tinme.”

Co-chair Geen referenced the letter she authored to Conm ssi oner
Jay Levy of the Departnent of Health and Social Services, dated
August 5, 2002, [copy on file] that requested, anong other things,
the Departnent’s plans for inplenenting the FY 03 budget and cost
cutting strategies. She noted that she has not received a response
fromthe Departnent.

Co-chair Green expressed that this is very disturbing. She noted
that the Legislature “wll be going on the record again this year”
that there would be “a very tight ship” on supplenental and budget
requests. She voiced support for the inplenentation of cost cutting
strategic prograns; prograns to attract federal dollars; and
possible re-organization as determned to be necessary. She
asserted that “for reasons that are not clear, itens that could
have been anticipated, end up on the suppl enental request, w thout
any information being provided that indicates that any options were
considered to produce cost saving neasures or to stop funding
t hi ngs when noney was limted.”

Ms. Clarke responded that the Departnment, under the managenent of
its new comm ssioner, Joel Glbertson, is focusing on cost
containment and alternatives. She noted that Conmm ssioner
G | bertson brings a breath of experience on the federal |evel. She
stated that the Departnent has been reviewi ng cost containnent in
the Medicaid program and she distributed a cost containnent
options list to the Cormittee titled “FY 02 Optional Expenditures
and Recipients” [copy on file] that contains each itenis associated
dol | ar anounts.

Co-chair Geen interjected that this list is not the only variable
bei ng di scussed, “as the cuts were supposed to be very broad based,
and if the noney is not there, the nessage was do not cone back
this year with a supplenental |ike this, and now you're here.”

Senat or Bunde asked which itemon the optional services |ist would
all ow schools to submt clainms for Medicaid eligible students.

Ms. dark noted that FY 02 legislation allow ng school districts to
bill Medicaid for student services in not a conponent of the
optional services |ist.

Co-chair Green concurred.

SFC- 03 (24)



Ms. Clark described the elenents of the optional service list and
the costs expended per item She explained that using the optiona
services |list to generate savings in the Medicaid program is
difficult because the order of services perforned “nust match the
list order as presented in the bill,” however, she noted that were
these services not part of the optional services list, the
Department woul d be required to pay nore to supply those services
t hrough nandat ory coverage provi sions.

Co-chair Green voiced appreciation for being provided the |list as
wel | as the understanding of its inplication; however, she stated,
“it does not disallow other cost cutting and savi ng” neasures bei ng
i npl enented. She stated that cost costing neasures have not
occurred, and that she woul d be expecting themto occur in FY 04.

Ms. O arke agreed. However, she asserted that cost containnment
efforts in Medicaid or any other regulated program nust be
inpl enented early in a fiscal year to reflect significant savings.

Co-chair WIlken, referring to page 13 of the backup material, asked
whet her the federally fornulated Medicaid match rate for Title X X
is usually a 60/40 match percent.

Ms. C arke concurred.

Co-chair WIken asked for an explanation of Tile XXI, which is
referred to having a federally fornul ated enhanced rate.

Ms. O arke responded that the federally fornul ated enhanced rate is
a better rate that is allowed for Denali KidCare. She stated that
it is approximately 71 percent conpared to the 58 percent of the
Title XI X formul a.

Co-chair Geen rem nded the Departnment to provide the Commttee
with information regarding detention facility occupants who m ght
qualify for Indian Health Services.

Senat or Hof fman asked whether the $53.1 mllion identified for
|l ong-termcare on the optional services list is the total expense.
He additionally asked the portion of the nedical fee that is the
patient’s responsibility.

Ms. O arke responded that this is the total expenditure anount. She
stated that the federal governnment remts approximtely 58 to 60
percent of the services expense to the State. She expl ai ned that
this category provides for the honme and community based waiver
program for elderly and di sabl ed individual s.

SFC- 03 (25)



Senat or Hof f man asked whether the recipients are responsible for
any of the expense of this service.

Ms. O arke understood that recipients are not responsible for any
of the cost; however, she continued, the federal governnent
specifies a small co-paynent fee for sonme services.

Co-chair G een asked which institutions are involved in this
servi ce.

Ms. Clarke clarified that this programinvolves non-institutional
services. She stated that these services could be provided to
people in assisted living homes or to people in their own homes who
recei ve Medi caid services.

Senat or Hof f man asked what organi zati ons woul d be providing these
servi ces.

Ms. Clarke responded that personal care attendants could provide
t hese servi ces.

Co-chair Geen asked if food and nedications are included in this
cat egory.

Ms. O arke voiced that Medicaid does not provide for roomand board
services unless the service is conducted in a nursing hone. She
clarified that these are non-nursing honme services.

Co-chair Green concluded that the distinction in these services
coul d be characterized as nursing hone service verses non-nursing
honme servi ce.

Ms. Clarke stated that a broader definition of the services would
be provi ded.

Senator Hof frman voiced that the cost of the service equates to
approxi mately $24,000 per recipient. He understood that assisted
living would be a | ess expensive alternative to nursing hone care.

Ms. Clarke asserted that, when conpared to the cost of Alaska’s
nursing home care, the cost “is significantly less.” She continued
that the “home and comrunity based waiver programis one of the
fastest growing progranms in the Medicaid program as it serves a
nunber of people who, without this service, mght end up in a
nursi ng hone” at a per person annual cost of approximtely $80, 000.

Senat or Bunde asked for further di stinction between an

SFC- 03 (26)



institutional and non-institutional hone.

Ms. O arke responded that clarifying material would be supplied to
the Commttee.

Co-chair Wl ken asked the Departnment to supply a breakout of the
entities that would receive $300,000 of the total $450,000
allotnment of the federal Famly Preservation Gant detailed in

8(a)(2).

Ms. Cl arke answered that the $300, 000 grant would be allocated to
the Al aska Native Heal th Board.

Co-chair WI ken asked the Departnment to provide a breakout of how
the Al aska Native Health Board grant woul d be spent, particularly
the portion of it allocated to rural Al aska non-profit entities.

Senator B. Stevens asked for a breakout detailing the anmount spent
by the State, the federal governnment, and the recipients of the
itens on the optional services |ist.

Ms. Clarke stated that this information would be provided.

SB 76

Ratifications: Section 17(a)(3)(A)
Department of Health and Social Services
AR 22520-01 (Medicaid Services)

$2, 753, 274. 86 general funds

Ms. Clarke informed the Conmttee that FY 2001 Medi caid expenses
generated this ratification expense. She explained that the
Departnment claimed sone famly planning services at the allowed 90
percent rate; however, she noted, $4.3 million of that claimwas
di sall oned by the federal agency adm nistering the program She
stated that the federal determ nation specified that the State
suppl i ed inadequate docunentation and consequently disallowed a
portion of the claim She stated that this ratification would
provi de funding to cover those expenses, which, she attested, the
State believed to be legitimate at the tine.

Co-chair Green asked whether there is a challenge process whereby
the State could have contested the federal ruling.

Ms. Clarke responded that the State has chall enged the federal
determ nation of the “Fair Share” program

SB 76
Ratifications: Section 17(a)(3)(B)
Department of Health and Social Services

SFC- 03 (27)



AR 22553-01 (Fam |y and Youth Services Staff Training)
$54, 910. 55 general funds

Ms. Clarke this ratification request was generated by a claimng
error in the Federal Title IV-E program wherein the Departnent
submtted legitimate direct charge clains, which were subsequently
reviewed and di sall owed by the federal governnent.

Senat or Hof f man asked why the State msinterpreted the eligibility
of these charges for services.

Ms. Clarke commented that these clains were understood to be
eligible; “but the determ nation was that the State did not supply
adequat e docunentation to prove” their eligibility to the federa
revi ewers.

Senat or Hof f man voi ced the hope that the Departnent “is providing
adequat e docunentation now, and in the future.”

Ms. Clarke stated yes, the Departnent believes it is.

SB 76

M scel | aneous C ai ns

Section 16(6)

Department of Health and Social Services

Adm n Support

M scel | aneous Cl ai ns and State-dated warrants $42, 267. 93
$42. 3 general funds

Ms. Clarke informed the Committee that this claim consists of a
series of individual m scell aneous invoices.

Co-chair G een asked whether these invoices were processed | ate.

Ms. Clark stated that these clainms consist of such things as an
i nvoi ce that was m splaced by a vendor, then found and submtted
two years later. She noted that State | aw obligates the Departnent
to obtain authorization to pay late expenses under these
circunstances. She then exanpled a situation where a child in
custody of the Division of Famly and Youth Services, and whomthe
Departnent believes is Medicaid eligible, would receive Mdicaid
funded treatnent. However, she continued, it would be determ ned
that the child is not covered. She characterized these charges as
resulting froma w de variety of situations.

Co-chair Green observed that the Departnment of Health and Soci al

Service’s mscel l aneous charges “are about ten tines higher the
rest of the entire State.”

SFC- 03 (28)



Co-chair Green announced that the Departnents’ projected expenses
must be addressed in order to mtigate next year’s supplenent
request.

The bills were HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Lyda G een adjourned the neeting at 10:54 AM

SFC- 03 (29)



